
Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - PRIORY ROAD COMMUNITY HUB PROJECT 
SUB-COMMITTEE

Date & Time - Tuesday, 23 January 2018 at 3.00 pm

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Priory Road Community Hub Project Sub-Committee:

Councillors: M G Chandler (Chairman), C N Worth (Vice-Chairman), G J Taylor, and  
C N Johnson (Advisory) 

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:   15 January 2018



A G E N D A

1 Apologies for absence 

2 Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Priory Road Community Hub Project Sub-Committee held on 20 July 
2017 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 1 
- 6)

3 Declaration of Interests - Where a Councillor has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must declare the interest to the 
meeting and leave the room without participating in any discussion or 
making a statement on the item, except where a councillor is permitted 
to remain as a result of a grant of dispensation.

4 Progress Report on Office Co-location at Priory Road and Associated 
Works - To provide the Priory Road Community Hub Project Sub 
Committee with an update  on progress with the collocation of the 
Department of Work and Pensions Job Centre Plus to the Council 
offices at Priory Road.  The report also updates the sub-committee on 
other matters currently under review and being actioned relating to 
potentially expanding the number of other public sector occupiers at 
Priory Road and adaptations and improvements that, if completed, 
should help better utilise the Council offices (report of the Executive 
Director Commercialisation enclosed).

(Pages 7 
- 20)



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PRIORY ROAD COMMUNITY HUB PROJECT SUB-
COMMITTEE held in the Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 20 
July 2017 at 11.00 am.

PRESENT

M G Chandler (Chairman)
C N Worth (Vice-Chairman)
G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

Executive Director Commercialisation, Communications Manager, Programme 
Delivery Manager and Interim Strategic Projects Manager

In Attendance: Democratic Services Officer

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors C N Johnson, 
together with Chief Executive

Action By
1 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were no declarations of interest.

2 PROGRESS REPORT ON OFFICE CO-LOCATION 
PROPOSALS AT PRIORY ROAD 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation on progress of Office Co-location proposals at 
Priory Road, seeking delegated authority to proceed with 
completion of the lease with the Department of Work and 
Pensions and to note the content of the report to approve the 
principle layout for the DWP area.

Interim Strategic Projects Manager introduced the report and 
gave an update on progress with the proposed co-location with 
Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) offices.

The designs of the plans had been frozen as far as DWP were 
concerned. They had changed slightly to what was within the 
report as reception would be slightly changing and more booths 
included. It was estimated that there were 3 to 4 weeks left on the 
design process.

DWP were due to have ministerial approval on whether they 
would be going ahead with the proposals by the week beginning 3 
July, but that had not happened. It was going through a full 
Business Case sign off and was currently delayed at the People 
and Location Board stage. This meant that the current 
programme would now not go ahead at the planned timescale. 
They were now looking to complete Phase 1 in time for Christmas 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



- 2 -

PRIORY ROAD COMMUNITY HUB 
PROJECT SUB-COMMITTEE - 20 July 2017

and not start the second phase until after Christmas, with a 
proposed handover schedule for the end of March 2018, as this 
was the date they had to be out their current property Broadgate 
House.

The benefits of DWP re-locating were financially neutral but had 
long term benefits for future tenants as well as improved 
residents’ access to services.

An expression of interest had been drafted for local contractors to 
advertise within 3 to 4 weeks.

A further meeting at the end of July was due to take place with a 
view to pushing the proposal forward.

The Chairman asked for a building works programme to be 
drafted so things could progress as soon as dates were 
established. Information on how the public areas would be 
affected during the transition stage was also requested.

The Programme Delivery Manager advised that a 3 month lead 
time on alterations for Compass Point Business Services (CPBS) 
areas was required and would need to be mindful of any impact 
on annual billing for a proposed handover.

RECOMMENDATION:

1. That delegated authority was given to the Executive 
Director Commercialisation to proceed with completion of 
the lease with the Department of Work and Pension; and

2. That the content of the report was noted and the principle 
layout for the DWP area was approved.

3 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were no urgent items.

4 TO CONSIDER RESOLVING THAT, UNDER SECTION 100A 
(4) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972, THE PUBLIC 
BE EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING FOR THE FOLLOWING 
ITEM OF BUSINESS ON THE GROUNDS THAT IT INVOLVES 
THE LIKELY DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS 
DEFINED IN PARAGRAPH 3 OF PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A 
OF THE ACT. 

DECISION:

Page 2



- 3 -

PRIORY ROAD COMMUNITY HUB 
PROJECT SUB-COMMITTEE - 20 July 2017

That, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraphs, 1, 3, 4 and 5 of part 
1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

5 PROGRESS REPORT ON OFFICE CO-LOCATION 
PROPOSALS AT PRIORY ROAD 

The Committee considered Appendix 4 of the progress report on 
Office Co-Location proposals at Priory Road and the Interim 
Strategic Projects Manager outlined the following points:

The ten year lease with an option for a mutual break at the 5th 
anniversary was a standard government policy. 

The building had been re-measured  – the yellow areas on the 
plans would be leased and the blue areas shared. The blue areas 
would be leased on a reduced service charge level (50%) The 
service charge would be on an annual basis and was based on 
total floor area.

The rent would commence on date of occupation. Contribution 
costs from DWP amounted to £200K, which was nearly 60% of 
the total transformation costs.

A full time security guard would be needed under the terms of the 
lease and the proposal would be for DWP to pay 90% of the 
costs. If further security was needed, then it was proposed that 
DWP be totally responsible for those extra costs. The estimated 
cost of £55k was not presently built into budgets, but would be in 
the future.

The Committee considered access control and the proposal to 
have a magnetic control on the door at the back of the proposed 
DWP area.

The Chairman had spoken to Executive Manager Information 
regarding proximity readers for the car park, doors and printers. 
Quotes were currently being sought on this matter, which would 
be additional to the £350k budget already allocated.

All the access points into the Priory Road site were being looked 
at, with proposals to limit the public to only one entrance. The rear 
entrance from Vine Street car park was frequently used therefore 
an evidence based decision would be made whether to limit this 
to staff and deliveries only. Approval was given to close the main 

Page 3



- 4 -

PRIORY ROAD COMMUNITY HUB 
PROJECT SUB-COMMITTEE - 20 July 2017

car park entrance to the public with access being limited to staff 
and deliveries only.

Current interest from other outside partnerships was encouraging 
and the position was outlined as follows:

 Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust proposal to 
have 4 hubs with up to 11 back office staff, waiting to 
arrange a meeting.

 Telephone conversations had taken place with Kevin 
Kendall, Property Officer, and Katie Gosling Programme 
Manager from Lincolnshire County Council– prior to a 
meeting scheduled for  2 August.  Looking into assets for 
Spalding and Holbeach, Ayscoughfee being a potential 
opportunity. Childrens Services could be relocated from the 
Vista site (up to 45 staff) Matthew Hogan and Paul Jackson 
would be invited to the meeting for their input. County 
Councillor Eddy Poll was liaising with the District Council in 
trying to positively move things forward between the two 
authorities. There was also a possibility in re-locating the 
registrars.

 Discussions had taken place with Boston’s Womens Aid 
who were currently housed within the CAB area of Priory 
Road. The Committee urged caution as to why they 
wanted to leave their current location within CAB. 

 
 Ministry of Justice – currently had two sites for their 

Probation Services at Broadgate House and in Boston, a 
proposed meeting within the next 3 weeks to ascertain 
their needs was scheduled. 

 South Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
(SLCCG) currently had staff at a site in Market Deeping 
and initial discussions had taken place about the viability of 
moving them to Priory Road Council Offices. However this 
would not be progressing further at this stage. A positive 
outcome was reached in that SLCCG had advised SHDC 
that they were keen to discuss other opportunities that may 
be better suited, so discussions would be developed 
further to progress these ideas.

 Mental Health had enquired about locating 10 back office 
staff at the Council Offices so these discussions would now 
be developed further with a view of possible co-location by 
the end of the year. Members would be updated at a later 
stage.

Page 4



- 5 -

PRIORY ROAD COMMUNITY HUB 
PROJECT SUB-COMMITTEE - 20 July 2017

The Executive Director Commercialisation was keen to start a 
modernisation programme for current staff at Priory Road to aid in 
the challenge of where to fit everyone.

Universal Credit would be launched in Spalding in  April 2018 
therefore CPBS would be busy during the period of change

A further update would be provided in September so a meeting 
would be tabled. 

(The meeting ended at 11.50 am)
(End of minutes)

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Christine Marshall – Executive Director Shared – Growth and 
Commercialisation

To: Priory Road Community Hub Project Sub Committee

Author: Richard Hodgson – Shared Executive Manager – Delivery 

Subject Progress Report on Office Co-location at Priory Road and Associated Works

Purpose:          To provide the Priory Road Community Hub Project Sub Committee with an update  
on progress with the collocation of the Department of Work and Pensions Job Centre 
Plus to the Council offices at Priory Road.

To update the sub-committee on other matters currently under review and being 
actioned relating to potentially expanding the number of other public sector occupiers 
at Priory Road and adaptations and improvements that, if completed, should help 
better utilise the Council offices.

Recommendations: 

The sub-committee of Cabinet : -

1) Note the content of this report in particular progress with the DWP collocation project.

2) Agree the proposed work programme for January through to mid-March 2018.
 
3) Agree to meet again to review progress with the work programme no later than the end of 

March 2018.

1.0 Background

1.1 As part of the Council’s Moving Forward Programme Cabinet approved, on 12th July 2016, 
the development of individual business cases to support the sustainable future of the Priory 
Road offices. An initial high level outline business case was subsequently commissioned 
and delivered by Arcadis Consultancy.  The report, received in February 2017, explored 
options and associated costs for upgrading and reconfiguring the interior of the Council’s 
offices at Priory Road. The findings of this report including alternative internal layout plans 
for certain office areas has proved extremely useful when looking at how flexible the 
accommodation can be for potential future collocations particularly with other public sector 
partners. 

1.2 The Arcadis report covered a range of issues including the proposed relocation to Priory 
Road of the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) Job Centre Plus currently based at 
Broadgate House, Westlode Street, Spalding.

1.3 The relocation of DWP has been the Council’s main focus for Priory Road during 2017, 
culminating in the Council and DWP entering into an Agreement for Lease in December 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2017. The Agreement for Lease commits the Council to carrying out adaptation works to 
the ground floor of the Councils offices at Priory Road and on completion DWP to take a 10 
year lease. The lease provides for DWP to contribute to the Councils cost of running Priory 
Road by way of a contribution to Service Charge and rental. 

1.4 The principles are that DWP occupy the accommodation based on market rents and will be 
contributing to the capital cost of the adaptation works required to make the 
accommodation fit for their purposes.

1.5 The scope of the DWP works has been set out in a report presented to sub-committee in 
July 2017 together with a summary of the financials which were contained in an exempt 
annex to that report as these were considered to be commercially sensitive until the lease 
is completed. These remain commercially confidential given that the lease to DWP will not 
be completed until the fit out works are completed in March this year.

1.6 Sub-committee approved the floor layout plans at the July 2017 meeting and these have 
been used as the basis for detailed design and subsequent negotiations with DWP. The 
finalised layout based on the ones approved by Board in July 2017, are attached in 
Appendix 1. These also show furniture positions agreed with both DWP and Compass 
Point Business Services (for the Customer Services area).

1.7 Appendix 2 of this report contains an additional plan with annotations showing the main 
moves and new areas created as part of this programme of works as further information for 
sub-committee. These plans are the same as those displayed in the Members Lounge 
since December 2017 and also used for council staff briefings.

1.8 Council approved the overall budget for delivery of the DWP project at its meeting on 12th 
April 2017. Consequently officers have been working within a budget of £350k to deliver the 
collocation to include building works, supply of furniture, ICT installations and professional 
fees. 

1.9 Locally based contractor Lindum have been appointed following a tender process utilising 
the Peterborough Local Contractors Framework – Lot 1 for projects of a value of less than 
£1m. The use of local contractors is important to the Council. Lindum recognise this and 
are using a range of locally based sub-contractors. 

Works commenced on Monday 15th January 2018, scheduled to be completed by the 3rd 
week in March to enable DWP to move to Priory Road by the end of March 2018 and DWP 
open for business by April 2018. 

The Council is not involved in the closure process of DWP’s existing premises at Broadgate 
House, Westlode Street Spalding only the provision of space at Priory Road to enable the 
collocation.

The contractors programme identifies 3 distinct phases of works to the ground floor of 
Priory Road. 

Phase 1 – Works required to create the new area for the relocating Customer Services (in 
the area previously used as the cash office). 

Phase 2 – Works required to create the new meeting rooms (to be leased to DWP), 
refurbishment, the dual use PACE Room and staff room (dual use for all occupiers of Priory 
Road) 

Page 8



Phase 3 – Following the move of the Councils Customer Services team to their new 
accommodation created during phase 1 the final phase will be works to the vacated former 
customer services area to provide the open area for workstations and customer seating 
shown on the plan in Appendix 1.

A summary of the contractors programme is set out below:-

Weeks 1& 2 – site set up, demolitions of former cash office and removal of ceilings in 
phase 1&2 areas, decommissioning of redundant services and installation of new, 
partitioning works

Weeks 3 & 4 – mainly electrical and joinery works and installation of ceilings grid.

Weeks 5 & 6 – ceiling installations, electrical installations, floor finishes and decorations. 
Completion of phases 1&2, commencement of phase 3.

Weeks 7 & 8 – Phase 3 - mechanical and electrical installations, ceilings, decorations, floor 
finishes.

Week 9 & 10 – completion of works and inspection/handover to DWP and preparation for 
DWP to move to Priory Road. 

1.10 Council officers have taken the opportunity with DWP moving into Priory Road to maximise       
the opportunities for encouraging greater self/ assisted service through digitisation. Once DWP 
are in occupation there will be new terminals, not dissimilar in appearance, to a cashpoint 
machine and shared computers for dual use (Council and DWP customers). The terminals will 
be located in the foyer area outside the new DWP area opposite Customer Services and will 
provide information on council services. A chip and pin facility will be integrated for customers 
to make payments to the council. In addition, a new scanning device will be located on the 
reception desk which will be used primarily for scanning documents for use by Customer 
Services. This programme of work forms part of the Council’s digitisation programme, an 
integral part of the “Moving Forward Programme” from where these devices and their 
installation by CPBS have been funded. 

1.11 Visitors to Priory Road will continue to utilise the reception desk and existing waiting area 
for council services. DWP work on a pre-booked appointment basis and will be seated within 
the main DWP area. DWP utilise “floor walkers” to help direct their visitors and provide 
information. Similar to other local authorities where DWP are co-located there are to be dual 
use computers for use by customers visiting both DWP and the Council. These can be seen 
on the plans in Appendix 1 both within the DWP area and outside or it in the foyer. The capital 
cost of providing these has been met 50/50 between the Council and DWP.

2.0 Promoting Collocation
2.1 On 22nd September 2017, the Council hosted the first of a series of Asset Challenge 

workshops as part of the Greater Lincolnshire One Public Estate programme (GLOPE). 
The programme forms part of a national agenda promoting collaborative working between 
and, collocation with, other public bodies be these different tiers of Local Government such 
as County Councils and District Councils, the NHS, blue lights (principally police fire and 
ambulance services), central government departments such as DWP, Ministry of Justice 
and Inland Revenue as well as with those delivering higher and further education. The 
programme also aims to look at local and central government collaborating with voluntary 
organisations such as the Citizens Advice Bureaus (CAB). CAB are already collocated at 
Priory Road occupying by way of a lease.

Page 9



2.2 Section 3.1 of the report considered by Council in April 2017 referenced “One Public 
Estate”.  Its objectives are to (1) Deliver more integrated customer focused services; (2) 
Create economic growth; (3) Reduce running costs; (4) Generate capital receipts.  The 
Council’s Moving Forward Programme’s key themes include Digitalisation and One Public 
Estate so it is important to continuously review opportunities to work in partnership with 
other public bodies and the voluntary sector. 

2.3 At the point this report was drafted and published, SHDC officers are due to meet again 
(19th January) with representatives of other local public sector providers to discuss the 
outcome of the South Holland District Asset Challenge workshop and further collocation 
options are programmed to be discussed. 

2.4 Selection of partners with whom collocation at Priory Road is to be pursued will need 
careful consideration.  Council needs to be cognisant of the need to secure collocations 
with potential partners that could not only work collaboratively or complimentary to the 
services SHDC provide but also with existing partners who are already in occupation at 
Priory Road, the likes of DWP and CAB. A verbal update from this meeting will be provided 
at the sub-committee meeting, as appropriate

2.5 Once DWP take up occupation, over 50% of the ground floor of the more modern parts of 
the Priory Road offices will be let and hence income producing. Including CPBS, the only 
part of the ground floor not let is that which are utilised for meetings, visitor waiting, 
circulation and the Members areas. 

2.6 There are opportunities to look at other areas of the building particularly the ground and 
second floors to accommodate a range of occupiers. The ground floor in particular lends 
itself to occupiers who require accommodation open to the public with the benefit of 
reception facilities and ease of access. The upper floors are probably better suited to more 
“back office” functions whereby the public do not require access. Detailed discussions are 
underway with a potential occupier for up to 10% of the Council’s office space for which 
progress will be reported at the next meeting of the sub- committee. 

2.7 Officers are actively discussing opportunities for collocation with two further public sector 
organisations. Once these discussions have developed further a report will be presented to 
sub-committee. As there are likely to be confidential elements to these enquiries with 
disclosure potentially prejudicing their position on their current occupancy this is likely to be 
a briefing by way of an exempt annex.  A series of meetings have already taken place and 
scheduled to continue through January and February so a further briefing to sub-committee 
in March would seem appropriate on the enquiry referred to in 2.5 above and further 
interest being developed.

2.8 To support these discussions the Council has and will continue to prepare plans to identify 
potential options and these will develop into more detailed space plans as these 
discussions progress. At an appropriate time, these discussions will move on to 
arrangements such as we have seen with DWP for matters such as basis of occupation, 
cost sharing, fit out requirements and rentals.   

2.9 Securing future tenants provides an opportunity for the Council to reduce its running costs, 
by offering an occupational agreement which would include a rental value based on market 
rates (as externally advised) and apportioned service charges such that the Council shares 
some of the running costs of the building with other occupiers.  

Page 10



2.10 Cabinet has previously expressed an interest in working with and providing guidance to 
Officers in how Priory Road is to be utilised in the future and how the principles of “One 
Public Estate” might be accommodated at Priory Road.  This is one of the reasons Cabinet 
agreed to set up a sub-committee of Cabinet and this support is welcomed by officers.  

3.0    5 Year Plan of Works to Priory Road
3.1 The Council commissioned a Condition Survey of Priory Road in 2010. This forms the basis 

of a 10 year plan of work including matters such as boiler and other plant and machinery 
maintenance, painting and decoration, maintenance to the fabric of the building including 
roofs and gutters. This is currently being reviewed and elements of it subject to further 
survey so as to provide an up to date position statement and plan of works which can 
ideally dovetail with potential collocations. The area DWP will be occupying for example 
was identified as requiring redecoration and this work has been subsequently picked up as 
part of the works necessary to accommodate DWP. There is merit in dovetailing 
maintenance programmes and improvement works to the outcome where possible of 
discussions and proposals for collocation. 

3.2 Four distinct pieces of work are underway, 2 of which relate to the heating and ventilation 
around the building, one relating to door access and the other the impacts and 
improvements that may be required to toilet, car parking and staff kitchen areas where 
increased number of occupiers and potential specific requirements may lead to a viable 
business case for investment. 

3.3 A review of the “door curtains”, the heaters above the 3 main entrance doors, has identified 
options to improve their performance and a report for consideration on this specific item is 
being prepared for consideration at a future meeting of the sub -committee. The proposal is 
to bring back to sub-committee a scope of works, summary of any further surveys required, 
a fully priced schedule of proposals where it is felt this could enable better utilisation of the 
Priory Road building, supported by a business case.

3.4 The outcome of the review and any associated surveys including suggestions on how these 
minor works/adaptations might be undertaken and funded will be dealt with in more detail at 
a future meeting of sub-committee. Subject to approval by sub –committee and availability 
of committee members, this will be at a meeting during March 2018. The nature, funding 
source and timing for any future adaptations for collocations are also likely to be influenced 
by discussions and progress with potential partners over the coming weeks/months so 
timing for reporting will look to take this into account too. 

3.5 Officers have previously updated the sub-committee on the principles of improved access 
control and hold an instruction to progress this with a further report to be considered by the 
sub-committee. Some progress has been made on this but the priority has been to secure 
DWP’s occupation which has its own specific access control requirements and CCTV. Two 
quotes have been received and third is due prior to sub-committee for a magnetic locking 
system which includes additional doors than existing being access controlled. A verbal 
update will be provided at the meeting on 23rd January and a more detailed and fuller 
report to follow.

4.0 Recommendations 

The sub-committee of Cabinet : -

1. Note the content of this report in particular progress with the DWP collocation project.

Page 11



2. Agree the proposed work programme for January through to mid-March 2018.

 
3. Agree to meet again to review progress with the work programme no later than the end of 

March 2018.

5.0 Options

5.1 There is a requirement for officers to work alongside Members on Priory Road through the 
sub-committee of Cabinet. To not do so would be contrary to this.  

6.0 Reasons for Recommendations

6.1 Council, at its meeting 12th April 2017, having considered a report updating Members on 
progress with the Priory Road high level business case and DWP, approved the following 
recommendations.  In the case of (i) and (iii) these would be progressed in consultation 
with Members through the sub-committee and these have now been completed. 

i. authorising the Director of Commercialisation in consultation with the Priory Road 
sub-committee to enter into a leasehold agreement with the Department for Work 
and Pensions for office space at South Holland District Council Offices at Priory 
Road Spalding 

ii. allocating a budget of £350k from the existing capital allocation to facilitate the 
required reconfiguration of the current ground floor office space and associated 
works 

iii. the submission of further reports setting out a five year programme of works in 
respect of planned maintenance and renewal to be prepared for sub-committee prior 
to it being considered by Council. 

The recommendations set out in this report are therefore consistent with the objectives set 
out by Cabinet in April 2017 around ongoing engagement with the sub-committee of 
Cabinet. No decisions are therefore required for this sub-committee that fall within the 
scope of (iii) above, at this stage.  This report on these items is for information only:- 

7.0 Expected Benefits

7.1 The expected benefits of this project were stated in the report to Council in April 2017:

 The proposed leasehold transactions will support the Council’s ambition to optimise 
the use of the Council’s assets resulting in an expected annual income of to offset 
against the running costs of the building. 

 This project will support the transformation of services through digitalisation and the 
government’s desire for ‘One Public Estate’.

 The project is expected to improve residents’ access to services and provide services 
at the right price and in the right place supporting the government’s ambition for 
Universal Credit.

 Part of the reconfiguration of space on the ground floor will also create a shared staff 
area that will be shared between DWP and future tenants, thus future proofing the 
space to create future income opportunities as part of the tenancy offer. 

Page 12



8.0 Implications

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the decision - 
particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation Programme; 
Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more of 
these headings, these are identified below.

8.1 Constitutional & Legal

All legal matters to safeguard the Council will be completed as part of the transaction of the 
purchase e.g. contracts and lease.

This sub-committee of Cabinet has been established to oversee this project and to make 
decisions in this regard.

The works required to the building to delivery DWP are contained within the Council’s budget, 
by virtue of the decision taken by Council in April 2017. 

8.2 Contracts

A works contract has been entered into with the appointed construction supplier Lindum Group   
Peterborough Limited and a contract (Agreement for Lease, with annexed Lease to be 
completed on completion of works) has been entered into with DWP. The Council has used the 
OJEU compliant local suppliers framework set up by neighbouring authority Peterborough City 
Council, during 2017. Lot 1, for works contracts up to £1m, included 5 contractors all of which 
bid. Lindum Group Peterborough Limited have been appointed following evaluation of bids 
received. 

8.3 Corporate Priorities

DWP’s interests and agenda as well as those organisations currently in discussion with the 
Council about space requirements provides the Council with a broad range of opportunities and 
benefits that align or match the Council’s priorities which include:

i. To provide the right services, at the right time, and in the right way.

ii. To develop safer, stronger, healthier more independent communities whilst protecting 
the most vulnerable. 

8.4 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

Such matters are being considered when identifying potential parties to collocate at Priory Road. 
DWP for example are committed to equality and diversity. DWP has signed its Charter for   
Employers who are Positive about Mental Health; it adheres to the Public   Sector Equality Duty, 
records annual equality information regarding its employment and has an agreed set of equality 
objectives.

8.5 Financial

Financial summary of the DWP terms were contained within the Exempt Annex to the July 2017 
Sub Committee of Priory Road. The financial basis of the DWP lease reported in July 2017 has 
not changed.

Page 13



A further report setting out a five year programme of works in respect of planned maintenance 
and renewal is also being prepared and which a future sub-committee will consider prior to it 
being considered by Council. 

8.6 Risk Management

Current identified DWP risks include the following for which a range of mitigation measures are in   
place:

 Works to Priory Road not being completed to programme and cost.

 Impacts on provision of normal services at Priory Road being impacted by the works 
such as a power outage, noise disturbance or matters outside of the Council or 
contractors control.

 Furniture delivery – this sits outside of the control of the Contractor as the furniture is 
separately ordered. 

 Delivery timeline for DWP occupation not met– (Note - DWP book appropriate times 
with their ICT providers to move. A delay in the programme of works and hence 
delivering the accommodation could mean a delay in relocating to Priory Road). 

8.7 Staffing

Most staff moves required for DWP occupation have already taken place. The final move will be   
staff relocating from the Customer Services desks to their newly created area during February 
2018 when works to prepare this area have been completed. This has been done in conjunction 
with CPBS.

8.8 Stakeholders / Constitution / Timescales

Via Council agenda publication. 

9.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

All Wards.

ACRONYMS

PACE – Police and Criminal Evidence
DWP – Department of Work and Pensions 
OPE – One Public Estate
CAB – Citizens Advice Bureau

Background papers:-

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Richard Hodgson Shared Executive Manager - Delivery
Telephone Number
Email: Richard.Hodgson@Breckland-Sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: N 
Exempt Decision: N 

Page 14



This report refers to a Discretionary Service

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A – Section Plan
Appendix B – Annotated Plan 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Priory Road
Entrance

Car Park
Entrance

Atrium
Shared
Reception

Shared
SHDC / DWP
customer

working area

DWP
customer
seating area

Proposed ground floor layout 

Existing
CAB area

SHDC customer
‘face to face’ service

SHDC / DWP 
shared staff
‘welfare’ area 

SHDC / DWP 
shared meeting room

2 new DWP
meeting rooms

DWP conference room

DWP Area

Proposed SHDC
Customer  Services
Contact Centre               

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Progress Report on Office Co-location at Priory Road and Associated Works
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


